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Located at the corner of McCormick and South Martinson is McCormick School, a
two-and-one-half story rectangular structure with truncated hip roof and full basement.
The main facade of the building faces east and is arranged symmetrically around a
central towered entrance pavilion. The building is constructed of brick, but the
exterior walls are veneered throughout with rock-faced coursed limestone. The roof
is sheathed with composition shingles while the trim of roof, windows and doors is
of white-painted wood. The building measures approximately 82 feet north to south
and 70 feet east to west.

The school building initially contained only four classrooms, two-over-two,
with stairway and halls Tlocated in the center of the plan. The original classrooms
have a set of three windows arranged regularly on each of two exposures; there are
additional single windows on each story at what was the west end of the original
north and south walls. Each window has a three-light transom surmounting sash with
six-over-one lights. Subsequently, four more classrooms, also two-over-two, were
added to the rear (west) of the structure, which resulted in the present four-over-
four plan. This addition is also veneered with limestone and on the west wall
features a simplified central pavilion element that echoes the one on the east
facade. But unlike the original building, there is an asymmetrical arrangement of
multi-paned ribbon windows rather than regular triadic groupings of single openings.

The east entrance pavilion is the school's most notable architectural feature.
It consists of twin, two story polygonal towers that flank a central two-and-one-half
story rectangular gabled tower and are Tlinked by an archway that shelters the double
door entry. This entry is at ground level. Small windows in the walls of the twin
towers are asymmetrically arranged.

Other notable architectural features include the dentilled cornice and the
detailing of the circular window of the central gabled tower, where the window is
enframed by stone laid in a radiating pattern.

Alterations:

The present appearance of McCormick School conveys well its historic character,
but certain alterations have been made over the years:

1. The addition to the west of four classrooms, arranged two-over-two, doubled
the size of the original building and altered the overall fenestration pattern. This
addition was made within 22 years of the original construction, and, although not
especially noteworthy in its own right, does expand the structure's historic character.
When viewed head-on from the east, the rear addition is not visible.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The McCermick School is significant to the city of Wichita for a number of
reasons. It is the oldest extant public school in the city; it 1is the work of a
well-known architectural firm, Proudfoot and Bird, and the only remaining pubtlic
school in the city of their design; and it is an important element of the city's
architectural history, exemplifying the Richardsonian romanesque fashion of the day,

History

The Tate 1880s was a period of great economic growth for the city of Wichita,
Kansas. Increased population forced the city to seek ways to expand its public
school system. McCormick School, the construction of which was authorized by the
city school board in 1889, was one of several new neighborhood public schools
erected during this period. '

The architects for the four room school were Proudfoot and Bird, a Wichita
based firm which received $266.70 for the plans and specs and the contractor was
William Duncombe. The building site cost $4,000 and the building was completed
in 1890 at a cost of $9,728. By 1909-12, the school could not accommodate a
growing enrollment, so the school board authorized a two story addition that would
add another four classrooms to the facility. Designed by an architect named Parsons,
the addition was completed in 1912. In the 1930's, a second building was erected
at the site, to the north and west of the original school building. Around 1935-
1936, the bell tower of the original school reportedly was weakened by winds and
had to be removed. Since the 1950s, various temporary classroom structures have
been used at the site to accommodate increases in enrollment.

Significance

The McCormick School is an important remnant of Wichita's late 19th/early 20th
century history, for it was one of several neighborhood schools constructed and
expanded during this period. To the citizens of Wichita, expansion of public school
facilities signified that the city was growing and progressing. Importantly, too,
the design as much as the practical purpose of these new school facilities received
considerable Tocal attention for the citizenry was conscious that construction of
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2. Each classroom has an exterior exit door with fire escape. Pro-
vision of these exits has required alteration of five windows located on
the north and south walls of the original portion of the building and of
several windows located in the rear addition. Two basement windows on the
east facade have been altered to provide access to two basement rooms.

The west facade has also been provided with fire escapes.

3. The main entrance pavilion was originally crowned by an open
wooden belfry. This feature was reportedly weakened by winds and sub-
sequently removed in 1935-1936.

4. In 1944 the original slate roof was replaced with composition
shingles.

5. In 1930 another classroom building was constructed to the west
and north of the school and connected to the McCormick School at the west
by a breezeway element. Although this building is partially visible from
the street, it is visually subordinate to the original McCormick School
building. When viewed from the east and south especially, the building
continues to be the visual focus of the schoolyard, just as it was when
originally constructed.

Condition:

The physical condition of McCormick School 1is good.
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such public buildings afforded them the opportun ¢% evidencing their
taste in addition to their prosperity. This attitude is illustrated by
an article about McCormick and four other newly constructed schools
published in the Wichita Morning Eagle on August 3, 1890. It was reported
that "The Wichita school buildings, public and denominational, are the
admiration of all strangers. They see upon every hand not only evidence
of wealth but such structures of art as proclaim the taste and refinement
of her people. The work of the artisan and the taste and culture of the
architect have gone together whenever and wherever there has been
expenditure of the public's money. The school buildings and other public
buildings of Wichita would be a credit to any city of ten times her
population.” The McCormick School is the only remaining school of this
period in Wichita.

In addition to being associated with an important moment in Wichita's
cultural history, the school has an important architectural significance,
not only because of contemporary admiration but because the building is
a characteristic example of the romanesque revival style of architecture
as promulgated by the nationally famous American architect, H. H. Richardson
and his followers during the 1870s and early 1880s. The school's architects
are indebted to Richardson's work in their use of the arched and towered
entrance pavilion and in the sense of bulk that is conveyed by the rock-
faced limestone walls and the overall horizontality of the design. Despite
the obvious reliance on the popular Richardsonian romanesque fashion of the
period, however, the school's design seems an individual expression., It is
a simple design, yet one that has a forceful and monumental aspect--an
expression derived from both the material employed and the symmetry of the
composition. But its singularity results primarily from the treatment of
the towers that frame the central entrance pavilion of the main facade--
here the windows of the towers are disposed asymmetrically in a subtle
way, and thus provide an understated but enlivening counterpoint to the
overall symmetry of the composition.

In short, the school was an up-to-date and sensitive design, for its
period, which not only illustrates the enthusiasm of midwestern citizens
for visible displays of fashionable thinking (the Richardsonian romanesque
style was at this time leading the architectural field in popularity),
perhaps to counteract accusations that the "frontier" was wild and un-
civilized, but also demonstrates the architectural expertise the citizens
of Wichita had available to them at this time.

The architects for the McCormick School were Proudfoot and Bird,
a Wichita firm established in the city by 1886. W.T. Proudfoot (b. 1860),
was educated in Iowa but had been briefly exposed to architectural trends
in Boston when he attended MIT for a semester of architecture courses in
1884-85. His partner, G.W. Bird, was evidently from Philadelphia. The
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young firm received an impressive number of large commissions from Wichita
clients, including those for Garfield University (now Friends University),
Wichita City Hall, and the old YMCA building--all properties presently
listed in the National Register of Historic Places. The firm was also
equally at home with smaller projects and received numerous commissions

for commercial structures and for homes, such as Proudfoot's own Hillside
Cottage, also a National Register property. A review of these works
suggests that Proudfoot and Bird were profoundly influenced both by the
monumental Richardsonian romanesque style and by the freer approach promoted
by the example of Shingle style work and that the firm was capable of
applying these influences to a wide variety of situations. The McCormick
School is an interesting example of the firm's work in that it partakes

of the monumentality of the public commissions, and also displays something
of the freedom of the domestic commissions. Although the firm designed
several public schools in Wichita, the McCormick School is the only one
remaining.

Proudfoot and Bird left Wichita in the early 1890s, and went on to
distinguish themselves in Salt Lake City, Utah, and then with extensive work
on the campus of Iowa State University at Ames, lowa. The firm acquired
a fine reputation wherever they worked. The Wichita commissions, including
the McCormick School, then, are instructive and valuable remnants of the
firm's early architectural designs.

NOTE: The above statements are based on current information and under-
standing. If additional material relevant to the property becomes
available in the future, revisions to this statement may be necessary.
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